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Murrindindi Shire Council
2014/2015 Financial Report

Comprehensive
Income Statement

For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Income

Rates and charges

Statutory fees and fines
User fees

Grants -operating

Grants - capital
Contributions - monetory
Contributions - non monetary
Other income

Total income

Expenses

Employee benefits

Materials and services

Bad and Doubiful Debts

Depreciation and amortisation

Borrowing Cost

Net gain{loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment
Cther expenses

Total expenses

Surplus {Deficit) for the financial year
Other comprehensive income

ltems that will not be reclassified to surplus or deficit in future periods
Net asset revaluation increment (decrement)

Comprehensive result

The above Comprehensive Income Statement should be read with the
accompanying notes.
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Note

W~~~ ooy W

10
1"
12
13
14

15

28

2015 2014
$ $

16,867,705 15,699,505
651,314 596,586
1,931,642 2,432,853
9,185,266 5,869,279
3,211,051 4,322,785
90,330 286,464
1,393,540 555,508
1,958,554 1,351,420
35,289,402 31,104,400
12,159,434 11,738,720
9,130,270 9,774,020
504,820 217,703
7,666,537 7,150,865
287,148 329,899
301,972 320,114
281,342 265,146
30,331,523 29,796,467
4,957,879 1,307,933
9,094,497 13,251,651
14,052,376 14,559,684




Murrindindi Shire Council Balance Sheet

Note 2015 2014
$ $
Assets
_Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 16 8,952,411 21,086,670
Trade and other receivables 17 2,330,680 4,501,267
Other financial assets 18 17,619,500 -
Inventories 19 53121 268,984
Non-Current assets classified as held for sale 20 837,158 -
QOther assets 21 312,019 247,876
Total current assets 30,104,889 26,104,797

Non-current assets

Trade and other receivables 17 38,938 15,824
Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment 22 303,213,594 296,007 826
Intangible assets 23 259,471 .
Total non-currentassets -~ ' © 0 303,512,003 296,023,650
Total assets 333,616,892 322,128,447
Liabilities

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 24 2,824,160 2,577,147
Trust funds and deposits 25 835,466 3,052,846
Provisions 26 3,143,223 2,972,654
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 27 768,570 900,774
Total current liabilities 7,571,419 9,503,421

Non-current liabilities

Provisions 26 1,688,239 1,551,599
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 27 2,028,151 2,796,720
Total non-current liabilities 3,716,390 4,348,319
Total liabilities 11,287,809 13,851,740
Net Assets 322,329,083 308,276,707
Equity

Accumulated surplus 129,201,956 126,728,438
Reserves 28 193,127 127 181,548,269
Total Equity 322,329,083 308,276,707

The above Balance Sheet should be read with the accompanying notes.
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Murrindindi Shire Councif

Statement of Changes in Equity
2014/2015 Financial Report

For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Asset
Nofe Accumulated Revaluation Other

Total Surplus Reserve Reserves
2015 $ $ $ $
Balance at beginning of the financial year 308,276,707 126728438 171452414 10,095,855
Surplus for the year 4,957 879 4,957 879 - -
Net asset revaluation increment 28(a) 9,094 497 - 9,004,497 -
Transfers to other reserves 28(b) - (2,714,681) - 2,714,681
Transfers from other reserves 28(t) - 230,320 - (230,320
Balance at end of the financial year 322,329,083 129,201,956 180,546,911 12,580,216

Asset
Accumulated Revaluation Other

Total Surplus Reserve Reserves
2014 $ $ $ $
Balance at beginning of the financial year 293,717,123 128,766,936 158,200,763 6,749,424
Surplus for the year 1,307,933 1,307,933 - -
Net asset revaluation increment 28(a) 13,251,651 - 13,251,651 -
Transfers to other reserves 28(b) '(3,740,890) - 3,740,890
Transfers from other reserves 28(b) - 394,459 - {394,459)
Balance at end of the financial year 308,276,707 126,728,438 171,452,414 10,095,855

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read with the accompanying notes
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Murrindindi Shire Council
2014/2015 Financial Report

Cash flows from operating activities

Rates

Statutory fees and fines

User fees

Grants - operating

Grants - capital

Contributions - monetary

Interest received

Other Income

Net Fire Services Property Levy received (remitted )
Net GST refund

Net receipt/{repayment) of trust funds and deposits —
Payments to suppliers {inclusive of GST)

Payments to employees (inciuding redundancies)
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment, infrastructure
Proceeds from sale of praperty, plant and equipment, infrastructure
Payments for Investments

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Finance costs

Proceeds from interest bearing loans and borrowings
Repayment of interest bearing loans and borrowings
Net cash used in financing activities

Netincrease (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

The above statement of cash flows should be read with the accompanying notes.

Restrictions on cash assets
Financing arrangements
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Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note

29

16

16
30

2015 2014
Inflows/ Inflows!/
{Outflows) {Outflows)
$ $
16,735,812 15,572,251
652,809 596,586
2,431,742 3,317,895
10,720,412 5,936,624
3,220,172 4,636,372
92,154 286,464
756,188 680,718
1,179,242 -
(2,101,609) 2,194,692
1,026,063 1,242,547
(Ms7y o o 119882
(10,568,882) (11,913,065)
{11,797 ,849) (11,687 968)
12,230,483 10,982,968
(6,064,864) (8,419,629)
448,832 1,118,205
{17,619,500) -
{23,235,532) (7,301,424)
{228,437) (268,641)
- 500,000
{900,773) {860,756)
(1,129,210 {629,397)
(12,134,259 3,052,147
21,086,670 18,034,523
8,952 411 21,086,670




Murrindindi Shire Council Statement of Capital Works

2014/2015 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2015
Note 2015 2014

Property
Land under roads 4,650
Total land - 4,650
Buildings 1,414,155 2,625,508
Total buildings 1,414,155 2,625,508
Total property 1,414,155 2,630,158
Plant and equipment
Heritage plant and equipment 11,646 14,627
Plant, machinery and equipment 849,563 721,357
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 73,322 216,908
Library books B4,523 74,876
Total plant and equipment 1,019,054 1,027,768
Infrastructure
Roads 1,188,708 3,090,051
Bridges 1,715,284 1,105,824
Footpaths and cycleways 537,865 346,537
Drainage 356,633 295,364
Total infrastructure 3,798,490 4,837,776
Total capital works expenditure 6,231,699 8,495,702
Represented by:
New asset expenditure 940,739 2,632,275
Asset renewal expenditure 3,951,615 4,524,498
Asset upgrade expenditure 1,339,345 1,338,929
Total capital works expenditure 6,231,699 8,495,702

The above statement of capital works should be read with the accompanying notes.

Page 7 of 44




Murrindindi Shire Council Netes to Financial Report
2014/2015 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Introduction

Note 1

@)

{b}

{©

)

(e}

The Murrindindi Shire Council was established by an Order of the Govemor in Council on 18 November 1994 and is a body corporate. The Council's main
office is located at Perkins Streel, Alexandra.

Statement of compliance

These financial statements are a general purpose financial report that consists of a Comprehensive Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes
in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of Capital Works and notes accompanying these financial statements. The general purpose financial report
complies with Australian Accounting Standards, other autheritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board, the Local Government Act
1989, and the Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014,

Significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting

The accrual basis of accounting has been used in the preparation of these financial statements, whereby assefs, liabilities, equity, income and expenses are
recognised in the reporting period to which they relate, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are required o be made about the carmying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated judgements are based on professional judgement derived from historical experience and various other factors thal are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Revisicn to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates is revised and also in fulures periods that are affected by the revision.
Judgements and assumptions made by managementin the application of AAS's that have significant effects on the financial statements and estimates relata fo;

- the fair value-of land, bulldings, infrastructure; plant and equipment 1-{m)--- - - e - - BT
- the determination of depreciation for buildings, infrastruciure, plant and equipment 1 (1)
- the determination of employee provisions 1 (s)

Unlegs otherwise stated, all accounting policies are consistent with those applied in the pricr year. Where appropriate, comparative figures have been amended
to accord with current presentation, and disclosure has been made of any material changes to comparatives.

Changes in accounting policies
There have been no changes in accounting pelicies from the previous period.

Principles of Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which Gouncil has control. Councll controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability fo affect those refums through its power fo direct the aclivities of the entity. Subsidiaries are iully consolidated from the dale on
which control is transferred fa the Council. They are deconsolidated from the date ihat control ceases.

For the current reporting period Council no controlled entities.

Committees of Management

All Committees of Managemenent controlled by Council that have material revenues, expenses, assets or liabilities, have been included in this financial report.
Any transactions between these entifies and Council have been eliminated in full.

Revenue recognition
Income is recognised when the Council cbtains control of the contribution or the right to receive the contribution, it is probable that the economic benefits
comprising the contribution will flow to the Council and the amount of the confribution can be measured reliably.

Rates and Charges
Annual rates and charges are recognised as revenues when Council issues annual rates nofices. Supplementary rafes are recognised when a valuation and
reassessment is completed and a supplementary rates notice issued.

Statutory fees and fines

Statutory fees and fines are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided, the payment is received, or when the penalty has been applied,
whichever first occurs.

User fees
User fees are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided or the payment is received, whichever first occurs.
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Murrindindi Shire Council Notes to Financial Report
2014/2015 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note 1

i

@

{h)

f

0

Significant accounting policies (cont.)

Grants
Grant income is recognised when Council obtains confrol of the confribution. This is normally abtained upon their receipt {or acquittal) or upon earlier
notification that a grant has been secured, and are valued at their fair value at the daie of transfer.

Where grants or confributions recognised as revenues during the financial year were obtained on condition that they be expended in a particular manner or
used over a particular peried and those conditions were undischarged at balance date, the unused grant or confribution is disclosed in note 6. The note also
discloses the ameunt of unused grant or contribution from prior years that was expended on Council's operations during the current year.

Cantributions
Monetary and nan monetary confributions are recognised as revenue when Council obtains cantrol over the contributed asset.

Sale of property, piant and equipment, infrastructure
The profit or loss on sale of an asset is determined when conirol of the asset has imevocably passed to the buyer.

Other Income

Interest and rent are recognised as it is eamed. Ofher income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received and is recognised when Council gains
confrol over the right to receive the income.

Fair value measurement

Council measures certain asssts and liabilities at fair value where required or permitted by Australian Accounting Standards. AASB 13 Fair value measurement,
aims to Improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across Australian Accounting Standards.

AASB 13 defines fair value as the price that would be received fo sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market parficipants
at the measurement date. Fair valug under AASB 13 is an exit price regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technigue.

All assets and liabllities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within a fair value hierarchy, descibed as
follows, based on the lawest level input that is significant fo the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabiliies;
Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indireclly observable; and
Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, Council has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset
or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

In addition, Gouncil determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole} at the end of each reporting period.

Cash and cash equivalents ' -
Cash and cash eguivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call, and other highly liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or less, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts.

Trade and other receivables

Receivables are carried at amortised cost using the efiective interest rate method. A provision for doubtful debts is recognised when there is objective evidence
that an impairmenl has occured.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets are valued at fair value, being market value, at balance date, Term deposifs are measured at amortised cost. Any unrealised gains and
losses on holdings at balance date are recognised as efther a revenue or expense.

Inventories

Inventories held for distribution are measured at cost adjusted when applicable for any loss of service potential. Other inventories are measured at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Costs are assigned on the basis of weighted average costs,
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Murrindindi Shire Councit Notes to Financial Report

20142015 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2015
Note 1 Significant accounting policies (cont.)
{k} Non-current assets classified as held for sale

A non-current asset classified as held for sale is measured at the lower of ils camying amount and fair value less cosls io sell, and are not subject to
depreciation. Non-current assefs held for sale are treated as current and classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highfy prebable and the assef's sale is expected to be
compleied within 12 months from the date of classification.

(1} Depreciation and amortisation of property, plant and equipiment, infrastructure, intangibles

Buildings, land improvements, plant and equipment, infrastructure and other assefs having limited useful lives are systematically depreciated over their useful
lives to the Council in a manner which reflects consumption of the service potential embodied in those assets. Estimates of remaining useful lives and residual
values are made on a regular basis wilh major assel classes reassessed annually. Depreciation rates and methods are reviewed annually.

Where infrastructure assets have separate identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are assigned distinct useful fives
and residual values and a separate deprecialion rate is determined for each component.

Straight ine depreciation is charged based on the residual useful life as determined each year.

Major depreciation periods used are listed below and are consistent with the prior year unless otherwise stated:

R e I — o fears e

Property
buildings: 30 tc B8O

Flant and Equipment
fixtures, fittings and furniture < 3 2
Gomptiters and elecommunications £ is]
hertage and cultural 20 o 200
library maderials 2t 10
plant machinern sind equipment B tc 15

infrastructure
bridges- concree 80 to 100
bridges- timber 30 o 40
drainage 50 1o 35
Tfooipaihs and cycleways. 20t 70
recreghonial, leisure and community facilities 30 to B0
road e ations. and earthworks 100 fo 200
road paveraenis 20 to 40

(m) Recognition and measurement of property,plant and equipment , infrastructure assets
Acquisition

The purchase methed of accounting is used for all acquisitions of assets, being the fair value of assels provided as consideration at the date of acquisition plus
any incidental costs atiributable to the acquisition. Fair value is the amount for which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an
arm's length fransaction.

Where assels are constructed by Council, cest includes all materials used in construction, direct labour, borrowing costs incurred during construction, and an
appropriate share of directly atfributable vartable and fixed overheads.
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Murrindindi Shire Council Notes to Financial Report

2014/2015 Financial Report

Note 1

For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Significant accounting policies (cont)

Recognition and measurement of assets (cont.)
in accordance with Council's policy, the threshold limits detafied below have applied when recognising assets within an applicable asset class and unless
otherwise stated are consistent with the prior years

Threshold
§
Froperty
Land b
Land undes roads %
Land improvements 5,000
Bufldings 5,000
Flant and Eqguipment
fiatures, fittings and fumiture 2,000
compulers and telecommunications 2,000
heritage and cultural 1,000
library malerials 1A0d
planl ;/machinery and equipment 2000
Infrastructure
bridges: 7,500
drainage 5406
footpaths and cycleways 2,00z
road formations and eardraorks 5000
read pavements 5000
Revaluation

Subsequent (o the initial recognition of assets, non-current physical assets, other than plant and equipment, furniture and equipment, Tibrary books and heritage
assets, are measured at their fair value, being the amount for which the assets could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an amms length
fransaction. At balance date, Council reviewed the carying value of the individual classes of assets measured at fair value to ensure that each asset materially
approximated its fair value. Where the carrying value materially differed from the fair value at balance date the dlass of asset was revalued.

Fair value valuations are determined in accordance with a valualion hierarchy. Changes to the valuation hierarchy will only occur if an external change in the
restriclions or limitafions of use on an asset result in changes 1o the pemissible or practical highest and best use of the asset Further detatis regarding lhe fair
value hierarchy are disclesed-in Note 22, Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment.

In addition, Council undertakes a formal revaluation of land, buildings and infrastructure assets on a regular basis ranging from 3 to 5 years.
The valuation is performed either by experienced council cfficers or an independent expert valuer,

Where the assels are revalued, the revaluation increments are credited directly to the asset revaluation resenve except to the extent that an increment reverses
a prior year decrement for that class of asset that had been recognised as an expense in which case the increment is recognised as revenue up ta the amount
of the expense. Revaluation decrements are recognised as an expense except where prior increments are included in the asset revaluation reserve for that
class of asset in which case the decrement is taken to the reserve to the extent of the remaining increments. Within the same class of assets, revaluation
increments and decrements within the year are offsel.

Land under roads
Council recognises land under reads it controls at fair value,

Repairs and maintenance

Routine maintenance, repair costs, and minar renewal costs are expensed as incurred. Where the repair relates to the replacement of a component of an asset
and the cost exceeds the capitalisation threshcld the cost is capitalised and depreciated. The camying value of the replaced asset is expensed.
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Murrindindi Shire Council Notes to Financial Report
2014/2015 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note 1

()

(4]

{a)

n

s)

Tedemption value being recagnised-inprofit-and loss over the period of the interest bearing liability using the effective interast rate method:

Significant accounting policies (cont.}

Impairment of assets

At each reporting date, the Council reviews the carmying value of its assets to determine whether there s any indication that these asseis have been impaired. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the assel's fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the
assefs cammying value. Any excess of the assets camying vatue over its recoverable amount is expensed to the comprehensive income statement, unless the
asset is carmied at the revalued amounf in which case, the impairment loss is recognised directly against the revaluation surplus in respact of the same class of
asset to the extent that the impairment loss. does not exceed the amount in the revaluation surplus for that same class of asset.

Trust funds and deposits
Amounts received as depesits and retention amounts controlled by Council are recognised as frust funds until they are retumed, ransferred in accordance with
the purpose of the receipt, or forfeited.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing cosls include interest on bank overdrafts, interest on borrowings, and finance lease charges.

Interest-bearing loans
Interast bearing liabilities are recorded inifially at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Subsequent to inifial recognition, interest bearing liabiiities are measured at amortised cost with any difference hetween the initial recognlsed arnount and the

Employee costs
The calculaiion of employee costs and benefits includes all relevant on-costs and are calculated as follows at reporting date.

Wages and salaries and leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monefary benefits and annual leave expected to be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporting date ara
recognised in the provision for employee benefits in respect of employee services up fo the reporting date, classified as current liabilities and measured at their
nominar values.

Liabitities that are not expecied fo be wholly settled within 12 months of the reporfing dale are recognised in the provision for employee benefils as current
liabilities, measured af present value of the amounts expected tc be paid when the liabilities are seftled using the remuneration rate expected o apply at the
time of settiement,

Long service leave

Liability for long service leave {LSL) is recognised in the provision for employee benefits.
Current Liability - unconditional LSL representing 7 years service is disclosed as a current liability even when the council does not expect to settie the liabity
within. 12 months because it will not have the unconditional right to defer seftlement of the entilement should an employee take leave within 12 months.

The components of this current liability are measured at :

- present value - component that is not expected to be settlied within 12 months.
- nominal value - component that is expected to be setfled within 12 months.
Classification of employee costs

Non-current Kiability - conditional LSL representing less than 7 years service is disclosed as a non - current liability. There is an unconditional right to defer
settlernent of the enfitiement until the employee has completed the requisite years of service.

This non-current LSL liability is measured at present value.

Liabilities for wages and salaries and rostered days off are recognised and are measured as the amount unpaid at balance date and include appropriate
oncosts.
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Murrindindi Shire Councif Notes to Financial Report

201472015 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note 1 Significant accounting policies {cont.)

(l) Landfill rehabilitation provision
Council is obligated fo restore the Alexandra landfill site to a particular standard. The forecast life of the site is based on current estimates of remaining
capacity and the ferecast rale of infill. The provision for landfil restoration has been calculated based on the present value of the expected cost of works to be
undertaken. The expected cost of works has been eslimated based on curent understanding of work required (o reinstate the site to a suitable standard,
Accordingly, the estimation of the provision required is dependent on the accuracy of the forecast timing of the work, work required and related costs.

(u) Leases
Operating leases
Lease payments for operating leases are required by the accounting standard 1o be recognised on a straight line basis, ralher than expensed in the years in
which they are incurred.

(v} Goods and Services Tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST. Receivables and payables in the balance sheet are shown inclusive of GST.
Cash flows are presented in the Statement of Cash flows on a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing and financing activifies, which are
disclosed as operating cash flows.

w) Financial guarantees
Financial guarantee contracts are not recognised as a liability in the balance sheet unless the lender has exercised their right to call on the guarantee or Coundil
has other reasons fo belisve that it is probably that that right will be exercised. Details of guarantees that Council has provided, that are not recognised in the
balance sheet are disclosed at Noie 33 Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets,

(x} Contingent assets and contingent liahiities and commitments
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet, but are disclosed by way of a note and, if quantifiable, are measured at
nominal value. Contingent assets and liabilities are presented inclusive of GST receivable or payable respectively.
Commitments are not recognised in the Balance Shest. Commitments are disclosed at their nominal value by way of note and presented inclusive of the GST
payable.

v} Pending accounting standards
Certain new AAS's have been issued that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2015 reporting period. Council has assessed these pending standards and has
identified that no material impact will flow from the application of these standards in future reporling periods.

) Rounding

Unless otherwise stated, amounts in the financial report have been rounded fo the nearest dollar. Figures in the financial statement may not equate due to
rounding.
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Murrindindi Shire Council Notes fo Financial Report
201442015 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note 2

Budget comparison

The budget comparison notes compare Council's financial plan, expressed through its annual budget, with actual performance. The
Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires explanation of any material variances. Council has adopted a
materiality threshold of the lower of 10 percent or $500,000 where further explanation is warranted. Explanations have not been
provided for variations below the materiality threshold unless the variance is considered lo be material because of ils nature.

The budget figures detailed below are those adopted by Council on 9th July 2014. The Budget was based on assumptions that were
relevant at the time of adoption of the Budget. Council sels guidelines and parameters for revenue and expense targets in this budget in
order to meet Council's planning and ftnancial performance targets for both the short and long-term. The budget did nof reflect any
changes fo equity resulting from asset revaluations, as their impacts were not considered predictable.

These notes are prepared to meet the requirements of the Local Govermment Act 1989 and the Local Government (Planning and
Reporting) Reguiations 2014.

a) Income and Expenditure

Budget Actual Variance
2015 2015 2015
Ref
Income
Rates and charges ‘ 16,721,002 16,867,705 146,703
Statutory fees and fines 662,266 651,314 (10,952)
User fees 2,092,569 1,931,642 (160,927)
Grants - operating 6,927,390 9,185,266 2,257,876 1
Grants - capital 3,354,257 3,211,051 (143,246}
~ Contributions - monetary ) ] ) 83,660 90,330 6,670 o
Confributions - nen monetary - 1,393,540 1,383,540 2
Other income 805,920 1,058,554 1,152,634 3
Total income 30,647,104 35,289,402 4,642,298
Expenses
Employee costs 12,248,040 12,159,434 86,606
Materials and services 10,613,137 9,130,270 1,482,867 )
Bad and doubtful debts - 504,820 {504,820) 5
Depreciation and amortisation 7,473,351 7,666,537 (193,186)
Borrawing costs 310,464 287,148 23,316
Net gain/{loss) on disposal of property, infrastructure, plant and equipment - 301,972 (301,972) 6
Other expenses 282,595 281,342 1,253
Total expenses 30,925,587 30,331,523 504,064
Surplus/{deficit) for the year (278,483 4,957,879 5,236,362
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Murrindindi Shire Council Nofes to Financial Report
2014/2015 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Note 2 Budget comparison {Cont.)

(i} Explanation of material variations

Variance Ref ltem Explanation

1 Granls - operating The Commanwealth Government brought forward payment of approximately half of the 2015-16 Financial ‘
Assistance Grant, being §2,158,655 paid in June 2015 which has confributed to the bulk of the favourable ‘
variance. Increased funding in Family Day Care & Home Care driven by increased level of service demand,
together with new funding of $60,000 for Municipal Emergency Resourcing makes up the remaining variance. 1
Funding of $125,000 for Advancing Country Towns has been carried forward into 2015-16 as programmed
expenditure had been delayed.

2 Contributions - non Contributions - non menetary represents the recognition of assets gifted to Council by either new subdivisions
monetary or assefs created by Community Projects on Council land. Council does not budget for these confributions dus
to the difficulty in estimating an ilem which is largely outside of Council controk. In 2014-15 this included
$514,105 for Roads, $233,252 for Drainage and $24,180 for Paths refated to new subdivisions in Kinglake,
Buxlon & Yea. Bridge projects at Yea Wetlands contributed $278,325 and $321,529 for the recognition of the
Eildon Wall Museum. The balance of $22,149 relates 1o the recognition of Land Under Reads related to these
gifted assets.

3 Other income Higher levels of cash held related fo incomplete capitals works, carried forward granis funding and increasing 1
reserve funds held has coniributed 1o addifional interest revenue on invested funds of $329,512 above the
original budget estimate. In addition in 2014-15 Council sold the Topsie Quarry operations (business not assef) v
for $300, 000 which also released liability funds of $250,000 held no longer required for the rehabilitation of the |
quarry. Additional revenue from recoupment of debt collection legal fees and interest on rates, together with !
proceeds from the Depot Clearing Sale of minor items has contributed to the remainder of the favourable
variance.

4 Materials and services New & Gifted Assets operating and maintenance allocation of $1.2m was not fully required with $910,851
fransferred to Reserve. With the sale of the Topsie Gully Quarry no crushing of materials was undertaken with
a saving of $150,268. Facilties Maintenance underspent by $80,870, insurance savings on premium & claims :
excess $67,604, General Valuation - Stage 2 deferred until 2015-16 $73,991, together with numerous minor '
program savings contribute to this favourable variance.

5 Bad and doublful debts  Council in 2014-15 processed a write off of debt from Department of Treasury & Finance of $502,368 relating to
disapproved works claimed for Natural Disaster Storm Damage Event 27 February 2012.

6 Net gainf{loss) on Council receipts from sales of assets and write off of carrying value of these assets sales are both under
disposal of property,  budget due to two parcels of land in Marysville not achieving sale results and also the deferral of trade of
infrastructure, plantand several items of plant running over in to the 2015-16 financial year. Sales of plant and machinery in 2014-15 did
equipment however achieve greater value than budgeted by $75,244. This however has been offsed by write out of

buildings at Yea Swimming Pool $101,154 demclished as part of the Capital Upgrade and write out of the
carrying value of the Ghin Ghin Bridge $312,284 also demelished and to be replaced within an upgraded
strusture, with capital works flowing over both the 2014-15 and 2015-16 financial years.
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Note 2 Budget comparison (cont}

b) Capital Works

Property
Buildings
Total Buildings
Total Property

Plant and Equipment

Heritage plant and equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment
Fixtures, fittings and furniture
Library books

Total Plant and Equipment

Infrastructure

Roads

Bridges

Footpaths and cycleways
Drainage

Total Infrastructure

Total Capital Works Expenditure

Represented by:

New asset expenditure

Asset renewal expenditure

Asset upgrade expendilure

Total Capital Works Expenditure

Notes to Financial Report

For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Budget Actual Variance
2015 2015 2015
3,361,979 1,414,155 {1,947 824)
3,361,979 1,414,155 {1,947,824)
3,361,979 1,414,155 {1,947,824)

5,000 11,646 6,646
1,257,746 849,583 {408,183)
217,31 73,322 {144,04%)
83,310 84,523 {4,787}
1,569,427 1,019,054 (550,373}
2,209,149 1,188,708 {1,020,441)
1,794,358 1,715,284 (79,074)
594,993 537,865 (57,128)
50,000 356,633 306,633
4,648,500 3,798,490 {650,010)
9,579,906 6,231,699 (3,348,207)
1,370,077 940,739 (429,338)
6,037,046 3951615 (2,085,431}
2,172,783 1,339, 35 (833,438)
9,579,906 6,231,699 (3,348,207)
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Murrindindi Shire Council Notes to Financial Report
2014/2015 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Nete 2 Budget comparison (conf}

(i) Explanation of material variations

Variance Ref ltem Explanation

1 Buildings This major variance is heavily influenced by the deferral of Alexandra Landfill works of $667,898 and uncompleted
works at Reserve Recovery centres of $133,591. Yea Civic Centre Precinet & Yarck Village late grant funding
approval has resulted in budget carry forward of $356,705. Yea Swimming Pool $465,455 and other Pool Seasonal
upgrades of $127,823 to be delivered in the "off season' hava run over year end with the balance of works fo be
completed in 2015-16. Alexandra Shire Office renewal of air-conditioning project is to be re-scoped with $247,527
being carried forward into 2015-16. Public Convenience renewal underspend of $57,589 together with various
building upgrades $235,666 have also been flagged to be carried forward. Y Water Centre expenditure of $268,323
relates to works carried forward from 2013-14. New unbudgeted grant funding of $85,106 was expended on the
Terrip Terrip tennis courts project.

2 Heritage Plant & Princess Alexandra Statue refurbishment required additional expenditure to address cracking in the pediment
Equipment structure and damage to the statue.
3 Plant, machinery Plant, machinery & equipment favourable variance relates to the delay in acquiring some items of major plant prior to

and equipment  year end $286,936 and deferment of changeover of several passenger vehicles pending adoption of revised flest
policy $107,271. These amounts totalling $394,207 have been carried forward into the 2015-16 Financial year.

4 Fixtures, fittings  GIS upgrade $45,000 has been deferred until 2015-16 along with under spend on Information Technology $77,025
and furniture pending outcomes of mobifity and business continuity requirements. Document Management expenditure of $39,175
was carried forward from 2013-14. Capital budgets of $45,000 for Project Management Development and part Pools
Capital equipment replacement $15,000 were transferred {c cperating budgets, as works identified were not capital
. in nature.

b Roads Eildon Town Centre grant funded project underspend of $326,269 and the Yarck Village Hub rejuvenation project
$18,221 are to be completed in 2015-16 due to the delay in funding approval. Vegetation Projects of $126,000 will
also be carried forward info the 2015-16 financial year for complation. Myers Creek Road upgrade $92,141 was
deferred due 1o revised scope of works and waiting on Vic Roads approval. Greens St Special Charge Scheme
expenditure of $33,188 was carried over from 2013-14, Underspends against the original budget occurred on Gravel
Road Resheets $54,458, Shoulder Resheeling Program $50,000, Sealed Roads renewal & Major patching
$144,424, Sealed Roads - Reseals $87,778 and Kerb & Channel renewal & upgrade $134,693.

& Drainage Drainage expenditure in 2014-15 related to carry forward of projects from 2013-14 being Drainage Study fnitiatives
for works in Yea $145,792 and Drainage Network expansion in Alexandra $200,995. Drainage works of $50,000
budgeted for 2014-15 were underspent by $40,155 which is to be expended in 2015-16,
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Murmindindi Shire Councif
2014/2013 Financial Report

Note 3

Note 4

Note 5

Rates and charges

Notes to Financial Report

For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

2015

$

2014

Councit uses Capital Improved Value (CIV) as the basis of valuation of all properties within the municipa! district. The CIV of a
property Is its total value of land plus buildings and improvements.

The valuation base used fo calculate general rates for 2014-2015 was $3,864 million {2013-2014 $3,531 million). The 2014-
2015 rate in the dollar for general rate was 0.003222 of the capital improved value of the property (2013-2014 - 0.003286).

Council has a differential rate for Rural 1 land of 75% of the general rate. Rural 1 land is classified as rateable land which is
not less than 40 hectares in area. There is no rating differential for land classified as Rural 2 land. Rural 2 land is any rural

land that does not meet the criteria for Rural 1 land and is between 4 and 40 hectares in size.

The 2014-2015 Municipal Charge was $290.00 (2013-2014 $274.00) per rateable assessment. In 2014-2015 the Garbage
Service Charge was $325.00 (2013-2014 $306.00) and Recycling Charge $79.50 (2013-2614 $75.00),

Residential
Commercial
Rural 1

Rural 2
Municipal charge

* Garbage charge

Recycling
Special rates and charges
Revenue in lieu of rates

5,383,542 5,077,221
595,852 523,307
2,990,545 2,818,434
2,558,467 2,386,934
2,662,369 2,505,859

2,024,651 1875556
490,017 454,215
102,728 -
59,534 57,969
16,867,705 15,699,505

The date of the last general revaluation of land for rating purposes within the municipal district was 1 January 204, and the
valuation will first be applied to the rating period commencing 1 July 2014,

Statutory fees and fines

Building

Environmental health and local laws
Planning and subdivisions
Infrastructure

Other

User fees

External works

Quarry product

Aged care

Valuation data

Saleyard fees

Recreation pools and leisure centres
Waste - transfer station & landfill fees
Other fees and charges

243,056 211,813
225423 225 461
110,390 111,603
54,562 29,409
17,883 18,300
651,314 596,586
- 46,350
290 373484
542 635 558,464
99,296 8,575
368,509 381,045
97,262 101,130
758,350 901,758
64,300 62,047
1,931,642 2,432,853
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Note 6

Grants
Grants were received in respect of the following :
Summary of grants
Commonwealth funded grants
State funded granis
Total
Operating Grants
Recurrent -Commonwealth Government
Govemnance
Community
Environment
Recurrent -State Government
Community
Environment

Tolal Recurrent Operating Grants

Nen-Recurrent -Commonwealth Government
Environment

Nen-Recurrent -State Government
Governance
Community
Ecenomy
Environment

Total non recurrent operating grants

Tofal Operating Grants

Capital Grants

Recurrent-Commonwealth Government
Environment

Total Recurrent capital grants
Non-recurrent-State Government
Community
Environment

Total non-recurrent capital grants

Total capital grants
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Notes to Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014
$ $
8,226,146 3,910,325
4,470,171 6,271,739
12,396,317 10,182,064
4,047,728 1,229,439
934,756 750,551
2,451,472 785,582
1,378,575 1,325,515
- 13,754
8,812,531 4,104,841
- 311,252
. 384,395
136,540 236,307
10,000 416,300
226,095 406,183
372,735 1,754,438
9,185,265 5,859,279
792,190 833,501
792,190 833,501
29,380 7,184
2,389,481 3,482,100
2,418 861 3,489,284
3,211,051 4,322,785




HMurrindindi Shire Council
2014/2015 Financial Report

Note 6

Note 7

Note 8

Grants (Cont.)

Conditions on Grants

Grants recognised as revenue during the year that were obtained on condition that
they be expended in a specified manner that had not occurred at balance date were:

Community
Economy
Environment

Granfs which were recognised as revenue in pricr years and were expended during
the current year in the manner specified by the grantor were:

Community
Economy
Environment

Net increase (decrease) in restricted assets resulting from grant revenues for the year:

Contributions
Monetary - operating
Monetary - capital
Nen-monetary - capital
Total Contributions

Confributions of non monetary assefs were received in relafion to the following asset
classes

land under roads
buildings
bridges
drainage
footpaths and cycleways
roads

Total

Gain / (Loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment and infrastructure

Proceeds from sales
less: Carrying amount of assets sold

Users of the financial report should refer to Note 22 for additional defails.

Page 20 of 44

Notes to Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014
$ $
167,944 145,368
- 306,300
969,460 1,273,377
1,137,404 1,726,045
191,985 295,580
145,450 123,653
1,498,140 1,258,504
1,835,585 1,677,737
(698.181) - 48308
49336 215,000
40,994 71454
1,393,540 555,508
1,483,870 841,972
22,149 -
321529 -
278,325 22,500
233,252 220,904
24180 43660
514,105 268,444
1,393,540 555,508
448,832 1,118,205
(750,804) (1438,319)
{301,972) (320,114)




Murrindindi Shire Council
2014/2015 Financial Report

Note 9

Note 10

Notes to Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Murrindindt  Shire Council makes the majority of its employer superannuation
contributions in respect of its employees to the Local Authorities Superannuation Fund
(the Fund). This Fund has two categories of membership, accumulation and defined
benefit, each of which is funded differently. Obligations for contributions to the Fund
are recognised as an expense in Comprehensive Income Statement when they are
made or due.

Accumulation

The Fund's accumuiation categories, Vision My Super/Vision Super Saver, receives
both employer and employee contribufions on a progressive basis. Employer
contributions are normally based on a fixed percantage of employee earnings {for the
year ended 30 June 2015, this was 9.5% required under Superannuation Guarantee
legislation {for 2013/14, this was 9.25%)).
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2015 2014
. $ $
Other income
Interest 689,798 604,436
Interest on rates 133,268 98,355
Rental 156,474 158,454
Reimbursements 306,459 370,013
Supervision and administration recoupment 9,275 9,049
Sale of quarry operations 550,000 -
Other 114,280 110,213
1,958,554 1,351,420
{a) Employee costs
Wages and salaries 10,379,371 10,021,089
Casual Staff 491,803 482,456
Superannuation 1,031,100 952,122
Fringe benefits tax 52,658 116,898
Workcover 164,502 166,145
12,159,434 11,738,720
(h) Superannuation
Council made confributions to the following funds:
Defined benefit fund
Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund {Vision Super) 82,996 79,6681
Accumulation funds
Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super} 627 814 639,134
Employer contributions - cther funds 320,290 233,307
948,104 872,441
Employer contributions payatie at reporting date.
Employer contributions to Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (Vision Super) 16,878 15,608
Employer contributions - other funds 8,610 5,698




Murrindindi Shire Council
2(14/2015 Financial Report

Note 10

Note 11

Note 12

* Years of service between 10-15 1%

Employee Benefits (Cont.)

Defined Benefit

Murrindindi Shire Council does not use defined benefil accounting for its defined
benefit obligations under the Fund's Defined Benefit category. This is because the
Fund's Defined Benefit category is a pooled multi-employer sponsored plan.

There is no proportional split of the defined benefit liabilities, assets or costs between
the participating employers as the defined benefit obligation is a floating obfigation
between the participating employers and the only time that the aggregate obligation is
allocated fo specific employers is when a call 5 made. As a resull, the level of
participation of Murrindindi Shire Council in the Fund cannot be measured as a
percentage compared with other participating employers. Therefore, the Actuary is
unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between employers for the
purposes of AASB 119

The expectad contributions to be paid to the defined benefit category of Vision Super
for the year ending 30 June 2(H6 is $94,628.

Enterprise bargaining agreement
Staff employed under Councils Enterprise Bargaining Agreement are entitled to
additional superannuation depending on years of service as outlined below;

‘Notes to Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

2015
$

2014

Years of service greaterthan 15 2%

Materials and services

Utilities
Contraciors
Legal Expenses
Insurance
Materials
Contributions
Consultants

Bad and Doubtful Debts
Rate Debtors
Cther Debtors
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521425
6,282,407
298,240
402,159
909,433
493,740
222,866

580,120
6,481,393
281,385
482,164
1,099,502
515,687
333,769

9,130,270

9,774,020

2452
502,368

3,556
214,147

504,820

217,703




Murrindindi Shire Council Notes to Financial Report

2014/2015 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2015
2015 2014
$ §
Note 13 Depreciation and amortisation
Property
Buildings ' 1,980,682 1,855,889
Plant and Equipment
Plant, machinery and equipment 607,885 585,925
Fixtures, fittings and furniture 161,995 159,498
Heritage and cultural ' 4,790 2,084
Library malerials 97,506 100,434
Infrastructure
Bridges 601,035 545774
Drainage 132,390 123,509
Footpath and Cycleways 255,753 240,944
Roads 3,806,461 3,536,808
Intangible assets
Landfill Airspace . 18,040 -
7,666,537 7,150,865
Note 14 Borrowing cost
Interest - borrowings 218,429 264,568
Interest - provision for landfill rehabilitation 68,719 65,331
287,148 329,899
Note 15 Other expenses
Auditors remuneration - auditing of the financial report 37,000 41,000
Auditors remuneration - internal audit 40,299 24,225
Councillors allowances 183,903 178,642
Other 20,140 21,279
281,342 265,148
Note 16 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at Bank and on Hand 2602411 3,274,170
Term Deposits and at Call 6,350,000 17,812,500

8,952411 21,086,670

Councils cash and cash equivalents are subject fo external restrictions that limit
amounts available for discretionary use . These include:

Trust funds and deposits (Note 25} 835,466 3,052,846
Bank Guarantee - Quarry 19,500 112,500
Statutory reserves (Note 28(b)) 416,754 394,004
Grants received in advance 2,145 860 2,844 041
Total restricted cash and cash equivalents 3417 580 6,403,391
Total unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 5,534,831 14,683,279

Intended allocations
Although not externally restricted the followings amounts have been allocate for
specific future purpose by Council :

Cash held to fund carried forward capital works ‘ 3,615,624 2,502,549
Cash held to fund discrefionary reserves ( Note 28} 12,163,462 9,701,851
Partion of Long Service Leave Liability 292,549 136,796
Total Intended allocations 16,071,635 12,341,196
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201472015 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014

Term deposits with a maturity date of greater than 90 days are reported as cther
financial assets refer to note 18.
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Note 17

Trade and other receivables

Current

Rates debtors

Provision for doubtful rate debts

Garbage and Recycling debtors

Other debtors

Provision for doubtful debts - other debtors
Government grants

Special rate scheme

Net GST receivable

Non-current
Special rate scheme

Total trade and other receivables

At balance date ofher debtors representing financial assels were past due but not
impaired. These amounts relate 1o a number of independent customers for whom there
is no recent history of default. The ageing of the Council's trade & other receivables.
(excluding statutory receivables) was:

a) Ageing of Receivables

Current (not yet due)

Past due by up to 30 days

Past due between 31 and 180 days
Pasl due betweaen 181 and 365 days
Past due by more than 1 year

Total frade & other receivables

b} Movement in provisions for doubtful debts

Balance at the beginring of the year
Balance at end of year
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Notes to Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014
$ $

1,259,037 1,146,954
(37,713) (35,261}
250,722 265,324
337,800 612,875
(86,635) (86,635}
310,995 2,326,406
9,024 5,264
287 450 276,330
2,330,680 4,501,267
38,938 15,824
38,938 15,824
2,369,618 4,517,001
310,322 1,179,400
54,858 218,304
85,930 22,616
75,725 362,866
35,315 1,069,450
562,160 2,852,646
86,635 86,635
86,635 86,635




Murrindindi Shire Council Notes to Financial Report

20142015 Financial Report For the Year Ended 30 June 2015
2015 2014
$ $
Note 17 Trade and other receivables (Cont.)
c) Ageing of individually impaired Receivables
At balance date, other debtors representing financial assets with a nominal value of
$86,635 (2014: $86,635) were impaired. The amount of the provision raised against
these debtors was $86,635 {2014: $86,635). They individually have been impaired as
a result of their doubtful collection. Many of the long outstanding past due amounts
have been ledged with Council's debt collectors or are on payment arrangements.
The ageing of receivables that have been individually determined as impaired at reperting date was:
Current {not yet due) - -
Past due by up to 30 days - -
Past due between 31 and 180 days - -
Past due between 151 and 365 days - -
Past due by more than 1 year 86,635 86,635
Total trade & other receivables 86,635 86,635
Note 18 Other financial assets
TermDeposit - S 17,619,500 -
17,619,500 -
Note 19 Inventories
Quarry Product - 125,540
Other - Alexandra Depot 32,995 71,151
Other - Yea Depot 20,126 72,293
53,121 268,984
Note 20 Non-Current assets classified as held for sale
Land 561,894 -
Buildings 275,264 -
837,158 -
Note 21 Other assets
Accrued Income 177,377 111,994
Prepayments 134,642 135,882
312,019 247,876
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Note 22

Land and Buildings

At fair value 1 July 2014
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2014

Movements in fair value

Acquisition of assets at fair value

Revaluation increments/decrements

Fair value of assets disposed

Impairment losses recognised in operating result
Transfers

Movements in accumulated depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation
Accumulated depreciation of disposals
Revaluation increments/decrements
Transfers

At fair value 30 June 2015
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2015

Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment

Note

Notes to Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Land - specialised ::gcs:e;lizzg Lang Under Roads Total Land Eplglc[:g;gsed BL;i[IJtLigi%s”;:don Total Buildings Work [n Progress Total Property

17,391,597 3,646,670 3,808,110 24,846,377 77,947,893 16,319,186 94,267,079 1,871,781 120,985,237
- - - . (29639,812) (3,603,386}  (33,243,198) - (33,243,198)
17,391,597 3,646,670 3,808,110 24,846,377 48,308,081 12,715,800 61,023,881 1,871,781 87,742,039
- - 22,149 22,149 882,168 - 882,168 853,516 1,757,833

4,379,372 b49,347 - 4,928,719 350,507 (130,974) 219,533 5,148,252
(106,606) {1,091) (107,697) - (372,360) (372,360) (480,057)
- (561,894) - (561,804)  (2,856,768) 3,880,798 1,024,030  (1,650,280)  (1,188,144)
4,379,372 (119,153} 21,058 4,281,277 (1,624,093} 3,377 464 1,753,311 (796,764) 5,237,884
(1,688,519} (292,163) (1,980,682) (1,980,682)

- - - - 271,206 271,206 271,206

1,413,877 {(1,211,850) 201,987 201,987

- - - 2,560,507  (2,487,032) 73,475 73,475
- - 2,285,865 (3,719,879) (1,434,014) - (1,434,014)

21,770,969 3,527,517 3,829,168 29,127,654 76,323,800 19,696,650 96,020,450 1,075,017 126,223,121
- - - (27,353,947)  (7,323,265)  (34,677,212) - {34,677,212)
21,770,969 3,527,517 3,829,168 29,127,654 48,969,653 12,373,385 61,343,238 1,075,017 91,545,909
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Note22  Property, infrastructure plant and equipment {cont'd)

Plant and Equipment

Al fair value 1 July 2014
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2014

Movements in fair value
Acquisition of assets at fair value
Fair value of assets disposed

Movements in accumulated depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation
Accumulated depreciation of disposals

At fair value 30 June 2015
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2015

Notes to Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Heritage plantand  Plant machinery  Fixtures fitings and ! j Total plant and
Note aquipment and equipment furnilure Library books equipment
334,141 6,505,806 1,783,495 799,500 9,422,942
{12,523} (3,090,072) (920,965) {351,605 (4,375,165)
321,618 3,415,734 862,530 447 1895 5,047,777
11,646 849,563 73,322 84,523 1,019,054
- (869,778) {19,030} {92,087) (980,895)
11,646 (20,215) 54,292 (7,564) 38,159
(4,790) (607,885) (161,995) (97,506) (872,176)
- 640,110 19,030 92,087 751,227
(4,790) 32,225 (142,965) (5,419) (120,949)
345,787 6,485,591 1,837,787 791!,936 9,461,101
(17,313)  (3057.847)  (1,063,930) (357,024)  {4,496,114)
328,474 3,427,744 773,857 4,964,987
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Note 22  Property, infrastructure plant and equipment (cont'd)

Infrastructure

At fair value 1 July 2014
Accumulated depreciation at 1 July 2014

Movements in fair value
Acquisition of assefs at fair value
Revaluation increments/decrements
Fair value of assets disposed
Transfers

Movements in accumulated depreciation
Depreciation and amortisation

Agccumulated depreciation of disposals
Revaluation increments/decrements

At fair value 30 June 2015
Accumulated depreciation at 30 June 2015

Note

Notes to Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Footpaths and

Roads Bridges cycleways Drainage Work In Progress Total Infrastructure
217,939,456 53,355,100 8,591,990 10,591,304 637,370 291,115,229
(67,002,634 (17,781,684) (2,787 831 {325,170} - (87,897,219)
150,936,922 35573425 5,804,159 10,266,134 637,370 203,218,010

1,634,743 474,882 227,676 589,885 1,921,166 4,848,352

644,432 158,162 24,964 6,982,955 - 7,810,513
(634,441) - - - (634,441)

363,053 - - - {363,053) -
2,642,228 (1,397 252,640 7,572,840 1,558,113 12,024,424
{3,806,461) {601,035) (255,753) {132,320) (4,795,639)
322,157 - - 322,157
(211,872) (54,158) (9,103)  {3,791,121) (4,066,254)
(4,018,333) (333,036) (264,856)  (3,923,511) (8,539,736)
220,581,684 53,353,712 8,844,630 18,164,144 2195483 303,139,653
{71,020,867) (18,114,720) (3,052,687) (4,248,681) - (96,436,955)
149,560,817 35,238,992 5,791,943 13,915,463 2,195,483 206,702,698
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Note 22

Property, infrastructura, plant and equipment {cont'd)

Valuation of fand and buildings

Valuation of land and buitdings were undertaken at 30 June 2015 by a qualified independent valuers Marcus Hann valuer registration number 62801 and David
Elford valuer regisiration number 62990. The valuation of land and buildings is al fair value, being market value based on highest and best use permitted by
relevant land planning provisions. Where land use is restricled through existing planning provisions the valuafion Ts reduced to reflect this limitation. This
adjusiment i an unobservable inpul in he valualion. The adjustment has no impacl on the comprehensive income slalement.

Specialised land is valued at fair value using site values adjusted for englobo fundeveloped andfor unserviced) characteristics, access rights and private inlerests
of olher parlies and entillerments of infrastructure assefs and services. This adjustment is an unobservable inpuf in lhe valuation. The adjusiment has no impact
on the comprehensive income staiement.

Land under roads is valued at fair value. Fair value is based on Counil valuations at 30 June 2014 for land under roads in exisience at that date and al the date
acquired for subsequent acquisitions using sile values adjusted for englobo {undeveloped andfor unserviced) characerislics, access righls and privale interesls of
other parties and entitliements of infrastructure assets and services

Any significant movemenls In lhe unobservable inpuls for land and land under roads will have a significant impact on the fair value of Ihese assels
Details of the Council's land and buildings and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2015 are as follows:

Lovel 1 Loysid *avel3
Land - 35F ST 21775969
Land Under Roxds - - 3875188
Bulngs - 12,3733%5 23,869,853
Tol - 15,835,302 74,585,300

Specialised land including fand under roads is valued using a markel based direcl comparison technique. Significant unobservable inputs include (he extent

--and impaclof restrictionof use-and the marketcost of land-per squaremelre:~The exlentand impactof restriclions on use varies and results in-areduction o ————""=-"-

surrgunding land values betwesn 50% and 95%. The market value of land varies significantly depending on the location of the land and the current market
condilions. Currenlly land values range between $1 and §252 per square melre.

Specialised buildings are valued using a depreciated replacement cost lechnigue. Significant unobservable inputs include the cumenl replacemenl cost and
remaining useful lives of buildings. Current replacement costs is calculated on a square mefre basis and ranges from $100 to $15,000 per square metre. The
remaining useful lives of buildings are determined an the basis of the current condition of bulldings and vary from 8 years to 80 years, Replacement cost is
sensilive lo changes in market condilions, with any increase or decrease in cost flowing lhrough 1o the valuation. Useful lives of buidings are sensilive lo changes
in expactations or requirements that could either sharten or extend the useful lives of buildings.

it e
3 ¥

Reconciliation of speclalised jand

Land under roads 2 BIh158 R AR
Arges Recreaion £,116, 568 4416270
Passive Racresian 8488 326 £,533,51¢
Commuriy cenres and has resshvas 1,282,563 1,458,130
Wazie Mamagemam 1,880, 78¢ 1,535,585
s A L3871 4540 208
Tois spadnlead nd 25 604 137 21 409,707
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Note 22

Property, infrastructure, plant and equipment (cont'd)

Valuation of infrastructure

Waluation of infraslructure road assets have been determined by Council Cfficer John Canny A.ALQLS. The valuation was first applied in the financial year ended
30 June 2013,

Valuation of footpaths and cycleways have been delermined by Council Officer John Canny A.A1L.QLS. The valuation was firsl applied in the financial year ended
30 June 2013,

Valuation of storm waler drainage have been determined by Council Cfficer John Canny A.ALQ.S. The valuation was first applied in the financial year ended 30
June 2015,

Valuations of bridges have been independently determined by Pitl and Sherry Ply Ltd. The valuation was first applied in Lhe financial year ended 30 June 2014,
Vaiuations have been indexed using Victorian read and bridge construction cost data provided by lhe Auslralian Bureau of Statistics

The valuations are at fair value based cn replacement cost iess accumulaled deprecialion as at the date of valuation,

Details of the Council's Infrastructure and information about the fair value hierarchy as at 30 June 2015 are as follows:

Details of the Council's infraslructure and infarmation about the fair value hierarchy as
at 30 June 2015 are as follows:

Level 1 Lewl 2 Level 3
Raoads - - 148 560,817
Bridges - - 85,738,482
Foolpaths end cycleway - - 6791943
Drainage - - 13015,463
Toial - - 204507, 218

Infrastructure assefs are valued based on the depreciated replacemenl cosl.  Significant unobservable inputs include the current replacement cosl and
remaining useful lives of infrasiructure. The remaining useful lives of infraslructure asses are determined on Ihe basis of the currenl condition of the asset and
vary from 20-200 years. Replacement cost is sensitive to changes in market condilions, wilh any increase or decrease in cost flowing through to the valuaion.
Usefuf lives of infrastructure are sensitive to changes in use, expeclations or requirements that could either shorten or exlend the useful ives of infrastructurs
assels.
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Note 23

Note 24

Note 25

Notes to Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Intangible assets

Gross Carrying amount

Landfill air space 1/7/2014
Transfer from property, infrastucture ptant equipment.
Landfill air space 30/6/2015

Accumulated amortisation

Balance at 1 July 2014

Transfer from praperty, infrastucture plant equipment.
Amortisation Expense

Balance at 30 June 2015

Net book value at 30 June 2015

Trade and other payables

Trade payabies
Loan Interest
Accrued wages
Accrued expenses

Trust funds and deposits

Refundable building deposits
Refundable planning permit bonds
Retention contract deposits

Fire Service Property Levy

Other refundable deposits

Purpose and nature of ilems

2013 2014
$ $
326,650 -
326,650 -
49,139 -
18,040 -
67,179 -
259471 -
2,402,954 2,212,492
32,589 42,607
357,927 234,832
30,680 87,216
2,824,160 2577147
44,500 44,500
248,820 232,028
201,128 165,630
93,083 2,194,692
156,935 415,996
835,466 3,052,844

Refundable building deposits and planning permit bonds - These amounts have been received trom individuals or companies ta guarantee performance

of obligations under various building permits, planning permits and contract agreements.

Fire Service Property Levy- Council is the collection agent for the fire services property levy on behalf of the State Government. Council remits amounts

received en a quarterly basis. Amounts disclosed here will be remitted to the state government in line with the process.

Retention Amounts - Council has a conlractual right to retain certain amounts until a contractor has met certain requirements or related warrant or defect
period has elapsed. Subject to the satisfactory completion of the contractual obligations , or the elapsing of time, these amounts will be paid to the

relevant contractor in line with Councils contractual obligations.
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Note 26

Provisions

2015

Balance at beginning of the financial year
Additional provisions

Amounts used

Balance at the end of the financial year

2014

Balance at beginning of the financial year
Additional provisions

Amounts used

Balance at the end of the financial year

(a) Employee benefits

Current provision expected 10 be settled within 12 months
Annual leave

Long service leave

Current provision expected fo be settied after 12 months
Annual leave

Long service leave

" Total Current provision

Non-current
Long service leave

Aggregale carrying amount of employee benefits:
Current
Non-current

The following assumptions were adopted in measuring the
present value of employee benefits:

Weighted average increase in empleyee costs
Weighted average discount rates
Weighted average sefflement period

{b) Provisions

Non-current
Landfill Restoration

A provision has been recognised for the costs to be
incurred for the restoration of the landfill site used for
waste management. It is anticipated that the landfill will
require restoration within 30 years. This value was recently
reviewed as part of Council's Waste Strategy.

Weighted average increase in costs
Weighted average discount rales
Weighted average setflement period

Total Provisions

Notes to Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

A L [

Annual Long service leave Landfill Total
leave restoration
$ $ $ $
1,011,420 2,188,737 1,324,096 4,524,253
774,438 307,205 68,719 1,150,362
{687,600) {155,553) - {843,153)
1,098,258 2,340,389 1,392,815 4,831,462
897,569 2,102,251 1,258,765 4,358,585
742,946 273,080 65,331 1,081,357
(729,095) {186,594} - {915,689)
1,011,420 2,188,737 1,324,096 4,524,253
2015 2014
$ $
726,760 673,444
123,640 130,500
850,400 803,944
371,498 337,976
1,921,325 1,830,734
. TR ey
3,143,223 2,972,654
295424 227,503
295,424 227,503
3,143,223 2,972,654
205,424 227,503
3,438,647 3,200,157
2015 2014
3.50% 4.00%
2.53% 3.16%
12ys 12yrs
1,392,815 1,324,006
1,392,815 1,324,096
2.50% 2.50%
5.19% 5.19%
37Yrs I ¥rs
4,831,462 4,524,253
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Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Current
Bank loans - secured

Non-current
Bank loans - secured

Total
The maturity prefile for Council's borrowings is:
Not later than one year

Later than one year and not later than five years
Later than five years

Bank Loans are secured by a charge over the general rates of the Council.

Aggregate carrying amount of interest-bearing loans and borrowings:

Current
Non-current
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2015 2014
$ $
768,570 900,774
768,570 900,774
2,028,151 2,796,720
2,786,721 3,697,494
768,570 900,774
1,361,125 1,808,856
667,026 986,864
2,796,721 3,697,494
768,570 900,774
2,028,151 2,796,720
2,796,721 3,687,494
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Note 28 Reserves

Asset revaluation reserves (a)
Other reserves (b)

{a Asset revaluation reserves

2015

Property

Land

Land under roads
Buildings

Infrastructure

Bridges

Drainage

Footpaths and Cycleways
Roads

_Total Asset revaluation_reserves . _

2014

Property

Land

Land under roads
Buildings

Infrastructure

Bridges

Drainage

Footpaths and Cycleways
Roads

Total Asset revaluation reserves

Assef revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-cument assets, as described in

accounting policy note 1 (m).

Notes to Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014
$ $
180,546,911 171,452,414
12,580,216 10,095,855

183,127,127 181,548,269

Balance at

beginning of Increment  Balance at end of
reporting period {decrement)  reporting period

$ $ $
16,449,435 4,928 718 21,378,153
269,053 - 269,053
24,975,477 421,522 25,386,999
41,693,965 5,350,240 47,044,205
5,241,170 104,003 5,345,173
6,353,396 3,191,834 9,545,230
4,342,056 15,860 4,357,916
113,821,827 432,560 114,254,387
129,758,449 3,744,257 133,502,706

o in4s2414 6084457 180,546,911

15,165,409 1,284,025 16,449,435
289,872 (20,819} 269,053
21,319,598 3,655,879 24,975,477
36,774,879 4,919,086 41,693,965
688,241 4,552,929 5,241,17¢
6,167,706 185,690 6,353,396
4,212,367 129,689 4,342 056
110,357,570 3,464,257 113,621,827
121,425,884 8,332,565 129,758,449
158,200,763 13,251,651 171,452,414
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&)

Reserves (cont.)

Other reserves
2015

Statutory Reserves
Public Open Space Reserve

Discretionary Reserves

Alexandra Community Letsure Centre

Coster Street Units Reserve

Defined Benefits Superannuation

Garbage Reserve

Gifted and Novated Assets Reserve
Infrastructure Contributions Parking
Infrastructure Balance MAP funding
Infrastructure Maintenance Reserve
Infrastructure Unexpended Capital Works Reserve
Marysville Caravan Park

New and Expanded Assets Reserve
Marysville Community Fund

Road Mainienance - Subdividers Contribution
Shaw Avenue Redevelopment

Yea Caravan Park

Yea Saleyards

Total Other reserves

Notes to Financial Report

For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Balance at Transfer from Transferto
beginning of accumulated accumulated  Balance af end of
reporting period surplus surplus reporting period
$ $ $ $

394,004 22,750 - 418,754
10,881 5,503 - 16,184

42,922 - {42,922) -
300,000 300,000 - 600,000
3,788,528 456,969 {68,512) 4,677,985
920,000 - - 920,000
41,080 - - 41,080
434,022 - - 434,022
684,016 266,060 - 950,076
426,843 41,313 {5,000) 463,156
113,489 53,549 {14,851) 152,087
2,610,467 910,851 - 3,521,318
63,531 - - 63,531
16,044 - - 16,044
43,752 - - 43,752

18,186 - {19,186) -
188,090 157,686 (79,749) 264,027
10,095,855 2,714 681 (230,320) 12,580,216
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Reserves {cont.})

2014

Statutory Resefves
Public Open Space Reserve

Discrefionary Reserves

Alexandra Community Leisure Cenire

Coster Strest Units Reserve

Defined Benefits Superannuation

Garbage Reserve

Gifted and Novated Assets Reserve
Infrastructure Contributions Parking
Infrastruciure Balance MAP funding
Infrastructure Maintenance Reserve
Infrastructure Unexpended Capital Works Reserve
Marysville Caravan Park

New and Expanded Assets Reserve
Marysville Community Fund

Road Maintenance - Subdividers Contribution
Shaw Avenue Redevelopment

Yea Caravan Park

Yea Saleyards

_Total Other reserves _

Notes to Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Balance at Transfer from Transfer to

beginning of accumulated accumulated  Balance at end of

reporting period surplus surplus reporting period

$ $ § $

379,004 15,000 - 394,004

8,379 2,502 - 10,881
37,116 5,806 - 42,9722

0 300,000 - 300,000

3,093,242 808,684 {292,398) 3,789,528
920,000 - - 920,000

65,480 - (24,400} 41,080

- 434,022 - 434,022
435,366 248,650 684,016
- 426,843 - 426,843
55,573 57,916 - 113,489
1,575,783 1,034,684 - 2,610,467

- 63,531 - 63,531

16,044 - - 16,044

43,752 - - 43,752

18,674 512 - 19,186
101,011 162,740 (77,861) 186,090

_ 6749424 3740890  (394.459) 10,095,855

Alexandra Community Leisure Centre reserve is surplus operational funds set aside for future capital works,

Cosler Sireet Unils reserve represents funds sef aside for fuiure maintenance costs of these units.

Defined Benefits reserve has been created to meet any obligations for future funding calls from the Vision Super Defined Benefits

Superannuation Fund

Garbage reserve represents funds set aside for rehabilitation of Landfill site. The reserve is lo be ulilised for future works to maximise life

of the landiill site {eq. Cell construction, cell capping and Leachate management over the next 10 years)

Gifted and Movated reserve is funds set aside from State Govemment funding to new assets gifted after the 2009 bushfires.

Infrastrucfure Maintenance Reserve represents funds set aside for addressing council’s long term infrastructure renewal obligations

Infrastructure Contributions reserve represents payments ifom Subdividers set aside for future infrastructure works relating 1o provision of

car parking.

Infrastructure balance MAP represents the final payment received from State Government related to the Murindindi Assistance Package.

Infrastructure Unexpended Capital works relate to carried forward items from 2014/15 that will be completed in early 2015/16.

Marysville Caravan Park reserve is surplus operational funds set aside Jor future capital works.

Marysville Community Fund are funds set aside from sale of Council assets in Marysville that are to be reinvested in infrastructure in

Marysville.

New and Expanded assets reserve represents funds set aside for future capital works on assets gifted following the 2008 bushfires.

Public Open Space represents payments from Subdividers as specified under the Subdivisions Act, to fund future creation of areas of

recreational land.

Road Maintenance reserve consists of coniributions from Subdividers to future road maintenance cost impacted by

respective subdivisions.

Shaw Avente reserve represents funds set aside for redevelopment of remaining land.
Yea Caravan Park reserve is surplus operational funds set aside for future capital works.

Yea Saleyards reserve is surplus operational funds set aside for future capital works.
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Note 29

Note 30

Notes to Financial Report

Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to surplus

Surplus for the financial year

Depreciation and amortisation
Contributions - non-monetary
Finance Costs

Net Fire Services Property Levy received (remitted )
(Gain)loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, infrastructure

Change in assets and fiabilities:
(Increase)Decrease in trade and other receivables
(Increase)Decrease in inventories
(Increase)/Decrease in other current assets
Increasef{Decrease) in trade and other payables

Increase/(Decrease) in trust funds and deposits
Increase in provisions
Net cash provided by operating activities

Financing arrangements

Secured bank loans at fixed interest rates:
Facility available

Used facility

Unused facility

Secured bank gverdraft subject to annual review and repayable at call;
Facility available

Used facility

Unused facility

For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

2015 2014
$ $
4,957,879 1,307,933
7,666,537 7,150,865
(1,393,540) (555,508)
228,437 268,641
(2,101,609) 2,194,692
301,972 320,114
2,147 473 98,939
215,863 (45,808)
(64,143) (27,401)
80,176 (15,019)
(115,771) 119,852
307,209 165,668
12,230,483 10,982,968
2,796,721 3,697,494
2,796,721 3,697,494
400,000 400,000
400,000 400,000

Should the bank overdraft be utilised the liability would be secured by a mortgage over the general rates of Council.
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Note 32

Commitments

The Council has entered into Lhe following commilmenls

2015

Operating

Garbage & Recycling Collection
Cleaning Council Buildings and Sireets
Document Quiput Devices

Valuaticn Services

Other

Total

Capital

Buildings & improvements
Total

2014

Operating

Garbage & Recycling Cellection
Cleaning Council Buildings and Slreels
Document Qulpul Devices

Valuation Sarvices

Other

Tolal

Capital

 Buiidings &improvemenls

Total

Qperating leases

(a) Operating lease commitments

Notes to Financial Report
For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

At the reporling date, the Council had the following obligations under non-cancellable operating leases for the lease of equipment and land and buildings for use within

Cauncil's activilies {lhese obligalions are nol recognised as liabilities):

Nof iafer than one year

Later than one year and not later than five vears

Laler lhan five years

{b) Operating lease receivables

The Council has entered inta commercial properly leases on its Caravan Parks and other
proparty assets. These proparties held under operating leases have remaining non-canceliable

lease lerms of between 1 and 99 years.

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

Not later Ihan one year

Lafer than one year and not laier than five years

Later than five years

Later than 1 Later than 2
yearandnot  years and not
Not later than later than 2 later than 5 Laterthan 5
1year years years years Total
$ $ $ 5 $
1,074,000 1,074,000 2,622,000 3,498,000 8,266,000
203,770 203,770 - - 407,540
23,138 - - - 23,138
156,922 18,306 356,988 - 532,218
99,929 30,305 58,015 - 189,243
1,557,760 1,326,381 3,038,003 3,498,000 5,418,144
766,720 - - - 766,720
2,324,480 1,326,381 3,038,003 3,495,000 10,184,864
Later than 1 Later than 2
yearand not  years and not
Not later than later than 2 later than 5 Later than 5
1 year years years years Total
§ $ § $ $
400,000 - - - 400,000
162,148 162,148 162,148 - 486,444
34,708 23,138 - - 57,847
178,274 - - - 179,274
22,000 - - - 22,000
798,130 165,287 162,148 - 1,145,565
B 157,097 - - - 157,097
95k 227 185,287 162,148 - 1,302,662
2015 2014
$ $
234,245 210,813
172,530 271,091
54N M6
o matw 456710
145,365 167,018
332,696 377,975
971,315 1,051,396
1,448,376 1,556,389
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Note 33

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Contingent liabilities

Legal Liabilities

As these matters are yet to be finalised, and Ihe financial outcomes are unable to be reliably eslimaled, no allowance for these contingencies has been made in the
financial report.

Superannuation

Council has obligalions under a defined benefit superannuation scheme that may result in the need to make addilional contributions lo the scheme to ensure that the
liabililies of the fund are covered by the assets of the fund. As a result of the vollility in financial markets the (ikelihood of making such contributions in future periods
exists. Af this pointin time it is not known if addtional conlributions will be required, their timing or potential amount.

Funding Arrangements

Murrindindi Shire Council makes employer contributions fo the defined benefil calegory of he Fund at rates determined by (he Truslee on the advice of the Fund's
Actuary.

The Fund’s latesl actuarial investigation was held as at 30 June 2014 and il was defermined that the vested benefit index (VBI) of Ihe defined benefit category of which
Murrindindi Shire Council is a contribuling employer was 103.4%. To determine the VBI, the fund Acluary used the following long-term assumptions:

Net investment returns 7.5% pa
Salary information 4.25% pa
Price inflation (CPI) 275% pa

Vision Supar has advised thal lhe eslimated VB! at June 2015 was 105.8%.

The VBI is Io be used as the primary funding indicator. Because the VBI was above 100%, the actuarial invesligalion determined the defined benefit category was in a
satisfactory financial posilion and thal no change was necessary fo the defined benefit categony’s funding arrangements from prior years

Employer contributions

Regular contributions

On the basis of lhe results of the mest recent full actuarial investigation conducted by the Fund's Actuary as at 30 June 2014, Murrindindi Shire Council makes employer
centribulions o the Fund's Defined Bensiit categery al rales determined by the Fund's Trustee, For the year ended 30 June 2075, this rate was 9.5% of members'
salaries. This rate will increase in line wilh any increass to the Superannuation Guaraniee {SG) contributian rate.

In addition, Murrindindi Shire Council reimburses the Fund lo covar the excess of the benefils paid as a consequence of retrenchment above he funded resignation or
retirement benefil

Funding calls

If he defined benefit calegory is in an unsatisfactory financial position at actuarial invesligalion cr Lhe defined benefit category's VBI is below Its shortfal limit at any time
olher than Lhe date of the actuarial investigation, the defined benefit category has a shortfall for the purposes of SPS 160 and the Fund is required to put a plan in place
so that the shortfall is fully funded wilhin Ihree years of the shortfall occurring. The Fund monilors its VBI on a quarlerly basis and the Fund has set lls shortfall limit at
87%.

In the event that the Fund Actuary determines that Ihere is a shortfall based on the above requirement, the Fund’s parlicipaling employers ({including Murrindindi Shire
Council } are required lo make an employer confribution to cover the shortfall,

Using the agreed methodology, the shortfall amount is apporlioned between the participating employers based on the pre-1 July 1993 and post-30 June 1993 service
fiabililies of lhe Fund's defined benefit caiegory, together with the employer's payroll al 30 Jure 1993 and al the date the shortfall nas been caloulated.

Due to lhe nalure of the contraclual obligations between the participating employers and the Fund, and thal the Fund includes lifetime pensicners and their revarsionary
beneficiaries, it is unliksly that the Fund will be wound up.

If there is a surplus in the Fund, the surplus cannot be returned lo the participaling employers.
In the event Lhat a parlicipating employer is wound-up, the defined benefil obligafions cf that employer will be fransferred to that employer's successor.

Latest actuanial investigation surplus amounts

The Fund's latest actuarial investigation as at 30 June 2014 idenlified the following in the defined benefit category of which Murrindindi Shire Council is a conlributing
employer;

AVBI surplus of §77.1 million; and
A total service fiability surplus of $236 million.

-The VB! surplus means Lhal lhe market value of the fund's assets supperling the defined benefil obligalions exceed the vested benefils that the defined benefit members

would have been entitled to if they had all exiled on 30 June 2014,

The total service liability surplus means thal the current valus of the assets in the Fund's defined benefil calegory plus expected fulure contribulions excesds the value of
expecled future benefils and expenses,

Murrindindi Shire Council was notified of the results of tha actuarial investigation during January 2015,
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Note 34

Financial Instruments
{a) Objectives and policies

The Council’s principal financial instruments comprise cash assefs, term deposits, recelvables (excluding statutory
receivables), payables (excluding statutory payables) and bank borrowings. Details of the significant accounting policies
and methods adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and
expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial lfability and equity instrument is disclosed in
Note 1 of the financial statements. Risk management is carried out by senior management under policies approved by the
Council, These policies include identification and analysis of the risk exposure to Council and appropriate procedures,
controls and risk minimisation.

(b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of our financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes
in market prices. The Council's exposures to market risk is primarily through interest rate risk with only insignificant
exposure to other price risks and no exposure to foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the value of a financial instrument or cash flows associated with the instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. Our interest rate liability risk arises primarily from long term loans and
borrowings at fixed rates which exposes us to fair value interest rate risk. Council does not hold any interest bearing
financial instruments that are measured at fair value, and therefore has no exposure fo fair value interest rate risk. Cash
flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future ¢ash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in -
market interest rates. Council has minimal exposure to cash flow interest rate risk through its cash and deposits that are at
fioating rate. .

Investment of surplus funds is made with approved financial institutions under the Local Government Act 1989. We
manage interest rate risk by adopting an investment policy that ensures:

- diversification of investment product,

- monitoring of return on investment,

- benchmarking of retums and comparison with budget.

There has been no significant change in the Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing
interest rate risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

Interest rate movements have not been sufficiently significant during the year to have a material impact on the Council's
year end result.

(c) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not complete its obligations under a financial instrument and cause us o
make a financial loss.

Council have exposure to credit risk on all financial assets included in our balance sheet. To help manage this risk;
- Council have a policy for establishing credit limits for the entities we deal with;

- Councii may require collateral where appropriate; and

- Council only invest surplus funds with financial institutions which have a recognised credit rating specified in our
investment policy.

Receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across the consumer, business and government sectors.
Creditrisk associated with the Council's financial assets is minimal because the major debtor is secured by a charge over
the rateable property.
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Note 34 {c) Credit risk {cont.)

We may also be subject to credit risk for transactions which are not included in the balance sheet, such as when we
provide a guarantee for another party. Details of our contingent liabilities are disclosed in note 33.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date to recognised financial assets is the carrying amount, net of any
provisions for impairment of those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and notes to the financial statements. Council
does not hold any collateral,

{d} Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of our operational liquidity requirements:

- Council will not have sufficient funds to settle a transaction on the date;

- Council will be forced to sell financial assefs at a value which is less than what they are worth; or

- Council may be unable to setfle or recover a financial assets at all. i

To help reduce these risks Council:

- have an investment policy which requires that only surplus funds are invested in financial assets;

- have readily accessible standby facilities and other funding arrangements in place;

- have a liquidity portfolio structure that requires surplus funds to be invested within various bands of liquid instruments;
- monitor budget to actual performance on a regular basis; and

- set limits on borrowings relating to the percentage of loans to rate revenue and percentage of loan principal repayments
to rate revenue.

Coungil's exposure to liquidity risk is deemed insignificant based on prior periods’ data and current assessment of risk.

There has been no significant change in Council's exposure, or its objectives, policies and processes for managing liquidity
risk or the methods used to measure this risk from the previous reporting period.

With the exception of borrowings, all financial liabilifies are expected to be setfled within normal terms of trade. Defails of
the maturity profile for borrowings are disclosed at Note 27.

(e} Fair value

Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amount of financial instruments reflect their fair valug

Fair value hierarchy

Coungcil's financial assets and liabiliies are not valued in accordance with the fair value hierarchy. Council's financial
assets and liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

{f) Sensitivity disclosure analysis

Taking into account past performance, future expectations, economic forecasts, and management's knowledge and -
experience of the financial markets,

the Council believes the following movements are 'reasonably possible' over the next 12 months.

- A parallel shift of +0.25% and -0.25% in market interest rates {AUD) from year-end rates of 2.0%.

These movements will not have a material impact on the valuation of Council's financial assets and liabilities, nor will
they have a material impact on the results of Council's operations.
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Note 35 Related party transacfions
(i} Responsible Persons

(i)

(i)

{v)

]

{vi)

Note 36

Names of persons holding he position of a Respansible Person at the Council at any time during the year are:

Councillors Councillor Margaret Rae - Mayor

Councillor Andrew Derwent
- Councillor Bemie Magner
Councillor Christine Challen
Councillor Cris Ruhr -resigned 25th June 2015 position vacant as at 30th June 2015
Councillor John Kennedy
Councillor John Walsh

Chief Executive Officer Margaref Abbey

Remuneration of Responsible Persons
The numbers of Responsible Officers, whose total remuneration from Council and any related entities fall within the following bands:

2015 2014
No. No.
$10,000 - $19,999 - 5
$20,000 - $29,95¢ 6 -
$30,000 - $39,999 - 1
$40,000 - $49,000 - 1
$60,000 -  $69,0%9 1 -
$200,000 - $209,999 - 1
$220,000 - . $229,999. .. . e e e e
8 8
$ $
Total Remuneration for the reporting year for Responsible Persons included above amounted to: 405,834 387,118

No retirement benefits have been made by the Council to a Responsible Person. (2013/14, $3).

No loans have been made, guaranteed or secured by the Council to a Responsible Person during the reporting year. {2013/14, $0).

Other Transactions

No transactions other than remuneration payments or the reimbursement of approved expenses were entered info by Council with Respansible
Persons, or Related Parties of such Responsible Persens during the reporting year. (2013/14, $0).

Senior Officers Remuneration

A Senior Officer other than a Respansible Person, is an officer of Council whe has management responsibilities and reports directly to the Chief
Executive Officer or whose total annual remuneration exceeds $136,000.

The number of Senior Officers other than the Responsible Persons, are shown below in their relevant income hands:

2015 2014
Income Range: No. No.
Less than $136,000 3 2
$136,001 - $139,999 3 2
$440,000 - $149,599 - 1
$150,000 - $159,999 1 -
$160,000 - $169,999 1 2
8 7
$ §
Total Remuneration for the reporting year for Senior Officers included above, amounted to: 1,022,289 962,397

Events occurring after balance date

No matters have occurred after balance date that require disclosure in the financial report
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Certification of the Financial Statements

In my opirtion the accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989, the Local Government

{Finance and Reporting) Regulations 2014, Australian Accounting Standards and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

ndrew Bond
Principal Accounting Officer

Date : ,?{(%)"tlﬂb Y

Alexandra

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements present fairly the financial transactions of Murrindindi Shire Coungil for the year ended 30 June
2015 and the financial position of the Council as at that date.

As at the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars in the financial statements to be misleading or
inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the Council and by the Local Government (Planning and Reporting} Regulations 2014 to certify ihe financial statements
in their final form.

Margaref Rae y
Councillor . [ , /%%

Date :

Alexandra lg’/ C"Q[/ A ¢ <

John Kennedy e

Councillor AT
Date : 7—6(0%[(5/
Alexandra

Margaret Abbey - : atdd <j
Chief Executive Officer =y \ . \

Date :
Alexandra
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Level 24, 35 Collins Strest
VAG O 3 Melbourne VIC 3000

Telephone 61 3 8601 7000
Facsimile 61 3 8601 7010

Victorian Auditor-General's Office Emall comments@audit vicgov.ay
Website www.audit.vic.gov.au

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Councillors, Murrindindi Shire Council

The Financial Report

The accompanying financial report for the year ended 30 June 2015 of the Murrindindi Shire
Council which comprises the comprehensive income statement, balance sheet, statement of
changes in equity, statement of cash flows, statement of capital works, notes comprising a
summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the
certification of the financial statements has been audited.

The Councillors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Councillors of the Murrindindi Shire Council are responsible for the preparation and the fair
presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, and the
financial reporting requirements of the Local Government Act 1989.

The Councillors are responsible for such internal control as the Councillors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

As required by the Audit Act 1994 and the Local Government Act 1989, my responsibility is to
express an opinion on the financial report based on the audit, which has been conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require compliance with
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and
performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from
material misstatement. '

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The audit procedures selected depend on judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, consideration is given to the internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Councillors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial report.

~ | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my audit opinion.

Auditing in the Public Interest



Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

Independence

The Auditor-General's independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. The Auditor-
General is not subject to direction by any person about the way in which his powers and
responsibilities are to be exercised. In conducting the audit, the Auditor-General, his staff and
delegates complied with all applicable independence requirements of the Australian accounting
profession.

Opinion
In my opinion the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Murrindindi Shire Council as at 30 June 2015 and of its financial performance and its cash

flows for the year then ended in accordance with applicable Australian Accounting Standards,
and the financial reporting requirements of the Local Government Act 1989.
L

MELBOURNE (:J Dr Peter Frost
28 September 2015 Acting Auditor-General

2
Auditing in the Public Interest
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2014/2015 Performance Statement For the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Description of Municipality
Murrindindi Shire Coungil {"the Council") is situated 150 kms or 90 minutes north-east of Melbourne,

The Wurundjeri fribe and the Tatngurung language speakers are the traditional owners of the land known as the Shire of Murrindindi. European setflement
followed Hume and Hovell's overland explorafion in December 1824, Many local towns were established during the 1850s and 1860s following the discovery of
gold.

The Murrindindi Shire Gouncil was declared on 18 November 1894 by the amalgamation of the former municipalities of Alexandra and Yea, and the addiiion of
parts of the former municipalities of Healesville, Broadford, Eltham, Whittiesea and Euroa.

The main industries of the Shire include agriculture, aquaculture, horticulture, forestry and imber processing, tourism and hospitality, light manufacturing and
engineering, retail and trades services, education and public services.

The council covers an area of 3,873 square kilometres, of which 48% is Crown land, and has a population of 13,585 as of the most recent Australian Bureau of
Statistics update.
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Basis of preparation

Councll is required to prepare and include a performance slatement wilhin its annual reporl. The performance statemenl includes |he results of the prescribed
suslainable capacily, service performance and financial performance indicalors and measures togelher with a descriplion of lhe municipal district and an
explanation of malenal variations in lhe resulls. This slatement has been prepared lo meel lhe requirements of the Local Govemment Acl 1989 and Local
Govamment {Planning and Reporiing) Regulaticns 2014.

Where applicable the results in the performance statement have bsen preparsd on accounting bases consistent with those reported in the Financial Statements.
The other resulfs are based on information drawn from courcil information systems or from third parties (2 9. Australian Bureau of Statistics).

The performance stalement presents the actual resulls for the current year and for the prescribed financial performance indicators and measures, the resulls
forecas! by lhe council's sirategic resource plan. The Local Govemmenl (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 requires explanalion of any material
variations in lhe resulls conlained in lhe performance stalemenl. Council has adopled malerialily thresholds relevant to each indicalor and measure and
explanalions have not been provided for varialions helow (he materiality thresholds unless he variance is considered (o be malerial because of ils nature

The forecast figures included in the performance slatement are based on the assumptions adopted by council in its budgel and stralegic resource plan on 27 May
2015. The budget and strategic resource plan includes estimates based on key assumptions aboul the future thal were relevant at the time of adcpfion and aimed
at achieving sustainability over the lorg ferm. Detailed information on the actual financial results is contained in the General Purpose Financial Stafements
Council's budgst and strategic rescurce plan are available on Council's website {www.murrindindi.vic.gov.au) or copies are available in all three of Council's
offices.

Definitions

"Aboriginal child” means a chiid who is an Aboriginal person

"Abcriginal person” has the same meaning as in the Aboriginal Heritage Act 2006

*active library member” means a member of a library who has borrowed a book from Ihe [brary

"adjusled underlying revenue” means tolal incoms other than -
(@) non-recurrent grants used to fund capital expenditure; and
{b) nen-monetary asset contributions; and
{c) conlributions 1o fund capital expenditure from scurces other than lhose referred to in paragraphs (a) and (b)

"adjusted underlying surplus (or deficit)" means adjusted underlying revenue less lotal expenditure

"annual report” means an annual report prepared by a Council under sactions 131, 132 and 133 of the Act

“assel renewal expendilure” means expendilure on an existing asset or on replacing an existing assel hat relurns the service capabilify of lhe assel to ils criginal
“class 1 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1964 (hal have been declared as class 1 food premises under seclion 19C of the Act
“class 2 food premises” means food premises, within the meaning of the Food Act 1984 that have been declared as class 2 food premises under section 19C of the Act

"Community Care Common Standards” means the Community Care Common Siandards for the delivery of HACC servicas, published from lime 1o ime by 1he
Commonwsallh

"current assels” has lhe same meaning as in lhe AAS
“current liabilities" has the same meaning as in the AAS
"food premises” has the same meaning as in the Food Act 1984

"HACC program” means the Home and Community Care program established under the Agreement entered inta for the purpose of the Home and Community Care Act
1985 of the Commonwaalth

"HACC service” means home help, personal care of communily respile provided under the HACC program
"infrastructure” means non-curreni property, plant and equipment excluding land
"local road” means a sealed or unsealed road for which Council is the responsible road authority under the Road Managemen Act 2004

"MCH" means the Maternal and Child Healh Service provided by Couneil o support the health and development of children within the municipality from birth until school
age

"non-currenl assels” means all assefs other than cumrent assels
"non-current liabilities” means all liabililies olher than current liabilifies

"non-recurrent grant” means a grant obtained on the condition that it be expended in a specified manner and is not expecled to be received again during the period
covered by Council's Slralegic Resource Plan

“own-source revenue” means adjusted underlying revenue olher than revenue thal is nol under the control of Council (including government grants)
"papulation” means the residnet population estimated by Council

"rate revenue” means revenue from general rates, municipal charges, service rates and service charges

"recurrent grant’ means a grant other than a nen-racurrent grant

"relalive secic-economic disadvanlage”, in relation fo 2 municipality, means lhe relative socic-econcmic disadvaniage, expressed as a decile for the relevant financial
year, of the area in which the municipality is located according fo the Index of Relative Socic-Economic Disadvaniage of SEIFA

"residential rales" means revenus from general rates, municipal chargss, service rates and service charges levied on residential properties

"reslricted cash” means cash and cash equivalenls, wilhin he meaning of the AAS Lhat are not available for use clher than for a purpose for which it is restricted, and

includes cash to be used fo fund capital works expenditure from the previous financial year

"SEIFA" means the Socio-Economic Indexes for Areas published from time Lo time by lhe Australian Bureau of Slalislics on its websile

“larget population” has the same meaning as in lhe Agreement entered into for the purposes of the Home and Community Care Act 1985 of the Commonwealth
"unrestricted cash” means all cash and cash equivalents other than restricted cash

"WorkSate reporlable aqualice facilily safely incidenl” mesans an incident relating to & council aguatic facility that is required o be nofified 1o the Victorian WorkCover
Aulhority under Parl 5 of lhe Occupational Heafth and Safety Act 2004.
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Sustainable Capacity Indicators

Indicator /measure

Results
2015

Material Variations

68

69

70

66

67

7

Population

Expenses per head of municipal population

[Total expenses { Municipal pepulation]

Infrastructure per head of municipal population

[Value of infrastructure / Municipal population]
Popuilation density per fength of road

[Municipal population / Kilometres of local roads]
Own-source revenue

Own-source revenue per head of municipal populafion
[Own-source revenue { Municipal population]
Recurrent grants

Recurrent grants per head of municipal popuiation
[Recurrent grants / Municipal population)
Disadvantage

Relative Secio-Economic Disadvantage

[Index of Relative Socio-Economic Disadvantage by decile]

$2,231.08
5$20,160.79

11.33

§1.574.79

3706.49

8.00

No material variations for 2014/15.

No material variations for 2014/15.

No material variations for 2014/15,

No material variations for 2094/15.

Ne material variations for 2014/15.

No materia! variations for 2014/15.
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PERFORMANCE STATEMENT
Service Performance Indicators
Results ‘
Service/indicator /measure 2015 Material Variations |
Aquatic Facilities |
Utilisation :
Data accuracy to be reviewed in 2015/16. Results for 2014/15 include
33 Ulilisation of aquatic facilities 1.57 estimates for daily family tickets which do not clearly specify the amount
of children entering under this ticlket.
[Number of visits to aquatic facilifies / Municipal population] 3
Animal Management
Health and safely ;
37 Animal management prosecutions 0.00 No material variations for 2014/15.
{Number of successful animal management prosecutions] i
Food Safety !
Healfth and safety |
41 Critical and major non-compliance outcome notifications 100.00% No material variations for 2014/15.
[Number of critical nan-compliance outcome nofifications and major non- 3
compliance notificafions about a food premises followed up / Number of ‘
critical non-compliance outcome netifications and major non-compliance
nctifications about a focd premises] x100
Governance
Satisfaction ‘
This result is below the small rural average f0r201}4l15 and may reflect
5 Salisfaction with council decisions 47.00 a response to the difficult decisions made by Council with regard to its
infrastructure renewal challenges.
[Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how counci! has performed in i
making decisions in the inferest of the community]
Libraries
Participation
22 Active library members No malerial variations f0r2014li5.

[Number of active library members / Municipal population] x100

16.68%
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{Weight of recyclables and green organics collected from kerbside bins /
Weight of garbage, recyclables and green organics collected from kerbside
bins] x100

PERFORMANCE STATEMENT
Maternal and Child Health {(MCH)
Participation
Participation levels are higher than forecast due to "drop-in” attendees
who visit the Murrindindi Shire, particularly over the summer months.
52 Participation in the MCH service 70.29% These children are enrolled in a different municipalities program and
are cnly briefly utilising the MCH service in Murrindindi Shire whilst on
holidays or transiting through the regicn.
[Number of children who attend the MCH service at least once (in the year}/
Number of children enrolled in the MCH service] x100
Participation
53 Participation in the MCH service by Aboriginal children 100.00% Nc material variations for 2014/15.
[Number of Aboriginal children whe attend the MCH service at least once {in
the year) / Number of Abariginal children enrolled in the MCH service] x100
Roads
Satisfaction
18 Satisfaction with sealed local roads 5200 No material variations for 2014/15.
[Community satisfaction rating out of 100 with how council has performed on
the condition of sealed local roads)
Statutory Planning
Decision making
9 Council planning decisions upheld at VCAT 100.00% No material variations for 2014/15.
[Number of VCAT decisions that did not set aside council's decision in
relation to & planning application / Number of VCAT decisions in relation to
___planning applications] x100
Waste Collection
Waste diversion
27 Kerbside coflection waste diverfed from landfiil 36.18% No material variations for 2014/15.
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PERFORMANCE STATEMENT
Financial Performance Indicators
Results Forecasts
Dimension/indicator /measure 215 2016 2017 2018 2018 Material Variations
Efficiency ‘
Revenue fovel !
64 Average residential rate per residential property assessment $899.06 §976.12 $1,035.48 $1,047.86 $1,162.35 No malerial variations for 2014115,
[Residential rate revenue / Number of residential properly assessments] :
Expenditure level
63 Expenses per properly assessment $3,192.12 $3,285.68 $3,353.47 $3.454.11 $3,657.04 No malgrial variations for 2014/15,
[Tolal expenses { Number of properly assessments] !
Workforce turnover .
} Higher resuils for 2014/15 when compared lo forecasts are due o a
65 Resignations and lerminalions compared fo averags siaff 16.26% 5.00% 5.00% 500% 500% larger number of retirements and resignations than expected for
2014115,
[Number of permanent staff resignalions and lerminalions / Average number
of permanent staff for the financial year] x100
Liquidity
Working capital
Council has underlaken a deliberale managemenl stralsgy Lo improve
66 Current assets compared to current liabilities 397.61% 239.90% 237.60% 236.10% 23590% | its cash position to prepare for known future renewal costs as well as
reducing ils current debt posilion,
[Current assets / Current fiabilities] x100
Unrestricted cash i
56 Unrestricied cash compared fo currsnt fabiities 73.10% 56.56% 54.33% 52.71% so7gy, | Counit achieved a higher than forecast cash pasilion in 201415 which
improved this ratio.
[Unrestricled cash / Current liabilities] x100
Obligations
Assel renewal
60 Assef renewal compared fo depreciation 51.67% 0374% 84.71% B2.62% 77.53% CZ%””"" only achieved 85% of i original capilal works budgal for
14415 resulting in a lower ihan sxpected asset renewal result.
[Asset renewal expense ! Asset depreciation] x100
Loans and borrowings |
57 Loans and borrowings compared {o rales 18.58% 19.60% 18.42% 17.19% 1588% | No malgrial varialicns for 201415,
[Interest bearlng loans and borrowings / Rate revenus) x100 .
58 Loans and borrowings repayments compared fo rates 5.64% 1.92% 1.81% 1.77% 1.73% Councl's deb reduclion Is}ralegy wil deliver Ir‘:»\lmer ralios in Ihe coming
years as Coungil's forecast debt position decreases.
[Interest and principal repayments on inlerest bearing loans and barrowings
I Rale revenue] x100
Indebladness !
58 Non-current fiabilities compared fo own source revenue 17.36% 19.85% 18.48% 16.92% 16.20% | No material variations for 2014/15.
[Non-current liabiities f Own seurce revenue] x100
Operating position
Adjusted underlying result
_ Council achieved a higher than budgeted operating result in 2014/15
54 Adfusted underlying surplus (or deficit) 3.51% -10.10% -12.20% -8.99% -7.58% due to savings achleved in.materials and services as well as above-
budget receipls of racurren{ granl paymenls and contribulions.
JAdjusled underlying surplus (deficif)/ Adjusled underlying revenue] x100
Stability ‘
Rates concentration ' !
§1 Rafes compared lo adjusfed undarlying revenue 53.66% 59.55% 59,80% 58.88% 59.91% ‘ Mo material variations for 2014/15.
|Rate revenue / Adjusted underlying revenue] x100 i
Ratss offort
62 Rates compared to property values 0.43% 0.48% 0.54% 0.52% 0.54% No malarial varialions for 2014/15.
[Rate revenue / Capital improved value of raleable preperties in the
municipality] x100
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Certification of the Performance Statement

In my opinion the accompanying performance statement has been prepared in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local
Government (Finance and Repoyting) Regulations 2014.

Andrew
Principal Accounting Officer

Date: 4% (r(}]['lol <

Alexandra

In our opinion, the accompanying performance statement of Murrindindi Shire Council for the year ended 30 June 2015 presents fairly the results of
council's perfermance in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Gevemment (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014,

The performance statement contains the relevant performance indicators, measures and results in relation to service performance, financial
performance and sustainable capacity.

At the date of signing, we are not aware of any circumstances that would render any parficulars in the performance statement fo be misleading or
inaccurate,

We have been authorised by the Council and by the Local Govemment (Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014 (o certify this performance
staternent in its finai form.

Margaret Rae S{) { é Z
Mayor - P

g.'aet:a;dra Q‘WG 07 / doesy

John Kennedy
Councillor

Date : L [o a(t(

Alexandra

Margaret Abbey ‘— s 5 QU\T-;

Chief Executive Officer \ '

Date :

Alexandra ._QE‘?' cl 1 NS
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Website www.audit.vic.gov.au

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Councillors, Murrindindi Shire Council

The Performance Statement

The accompanying performance statement for the year ended 30 June 2015 of the Murrindindi
Shire Council which comprises the statement, the related notes and the certification of the
performance statement has been audited.

 The Céunciﬂors’ Responsibility for the Performance Statement

The Councillors of the Murrindindi Shire Council are responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the performance statement in accordance with the Local Government Act 1989
and for such internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation and fair presentation of the performance statement that is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

As required by the Local Government Act 1989, my responsibility is to express an opinion on
the performance statement based on the audit, which has been conducted in accordance with
Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require compliance with relevant ethical
requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the performance statement is free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the performance statement. The audit procedures selected depend on
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the performance
statement, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, consideration is
given to the internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
performance statement in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the overall presentation of the
performance statement.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my audit opinion. ;

Auditing in the Public Interest




Independent Auditor's Report (continued)

Independence

The Auditor-General's independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. The Auditor-
General is not subject to direction by any person about the way in which his powers and
responsibilities are to be exercised. In conducting the audit, the Auditor-General, his staff and
delegates complied with all applicable independence requirements of the Australian accounting
profession.

Auditor’s Opinion

In my opinion, the performance statement of the Murrindindi Shire Council in respect of the 30
June 2015 financial year presents fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with the Local
Government Act 1989.

‘7() i ._N (“‘/
MELBOURNE ~ Dr Peter Frost
28 September 2015 Acting Auditor-General
2
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